Board of Health Meeting Minutes Wednesday, November 15, 2023 Virtual Meeting

BOARD OF HEALTH MEMBERS PRESENT

Marianne Hartmann, Peter Sheckman, Alicia Reddin

MEMBERS ABSENT

None

OTHER TOWN OFFICIALS PRESENT

Jeffrey Vaughan, Director of Public Health

OPEN MEETING

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM.

REVIEW APPROVE MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS

 On MOTION by Reddin and SECONDED by Hartmann, the Board of Health voted to approve prior meeting minutes from October 12, 2023. The motion passed unanimously.

MEMBER DISCUSSION RELATIVE TO SUPPORT PROPOSED PLASTICS TAKE OUT BY-LAW

- Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) chair Wayne Spritz and member Alix Smullin joined the meeting to discuss the proposed plastics take out by-law.
- Spritz stated that SWAC met last night and updated the draft by-law.
- Smullin covered changes to the by-law draft. Changes included:
 - The addition of the definitions of food establishments, prepared food, and recycled PET.
 - The addition of the material recycled PET to the list of prohibited materials in Section V.
 - o The re-ordering of some existing items in the draft by-law.
 - The addition of Section III, item 6.
 - o Etc
- Spritz asked the Board of Health to motion to support the by-law draft with special approval of the statement in Section VI: Consumer Advisory.

- On MOTION from Hartmann and SECONDED by Reddin, the Board of Health voted to accept the statement in "Section VI: Consumer Advisory" as written. The motion passed unanimously.
- Jeff spoke to the verbiage in "Section VII: Enforcement": "this bylaw may be enforced by any agents or contractor of the Board of Health" and confirmed that this meant the Health Department could hire someone to do this work rather than rely on Health Department staff to do this themselves. The Board of Health and SWAC discussed the logistics of enforcement agents at weekend events.
- On MOTION from Reddin and SECONDED by Hartmann, the Board of Health voted to accept the by-law as written. The motion passed unanimously.

HEALTH DIRECTOR REPORT

- The Swampscott Health Department is participating in regional Covid vaccination clinics with Marblehead, Beverly, Danvers, Salem, and Peabody. The 2023-2024 Moderna Covid-19 vaccine will be available to those who are at least 12 years of age and who have had their last Covid vaccine at least 2 months ago. Interested individuals can attend the clinic that is most convenient for them. Pre-registration is required at https://home.color.com/vaccine/register/peabody/startFlow
- The Swampscott Health Department has created a survey regarding the opioid settlement funds they have received. The survey is available through December 4, 2023 via paper copy at Town Hall, the Library, and the Senior Center and online at https://forms.gle/rdihQjk1CQ4jZglcl? imcp=1
- The Town is set to receive \$1,061,242.00 over the course of 15 years from these settlement funds.
- Car tire collection on September 30th and pumpkin drop off for composting with Black Earth Composter on November 4th were very successful.
- Household hazardous waste day with Marblehead will take place on November 18th.
 There will be another HHW collection in April 2024.

OTHER BUSINESS/ITEMS NOT REASONABLY ANTICIPATED BY THE BOH

None.

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE

The next meeting has been scheduled for January 17, 2024 at 6 PM

ADJOURN

- On MOTION by Hartmann and SECONDED by Reddin, it was VOTED to adjourn the meeting. The motion passed unanimously.
- The meeting adjourned at 6:33 PM

True Attest, Brittney Jones



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT

SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

22 Monument Avenue Swampscott, MA 01907

REGULATIONS FOR PLASTIC CONTAINERS IN FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS

A Proposed Bylaw for 2023 Special Town Meeting

11/15/2023 DRAFT (B)
Presented to Select Board and Board of Health

SWAC Approved 11/14/2023
Town Counsel Reviewed 11/15/2023

Changes from previous 10/11/2023 draft are highlighted.

DRAFT (B)- 11/15/2023 Presented to Select Board and Board of Health

Section I: Purpose and Intent	1
Section II: Definition	
Section III: General Prohibition and Regulation	
Section IV: Exemptions	
Section V: Material Specifications	
·	
Section VI: Consumer Advisory	
Section VII: Enforcement	
Section VIII: Severability	5

Section I: Purpose and Intent

This bylaw is enacted for the purpose of reducing the distribution of food service ware and food service ware accessories that are not compostable, recyclable or reusable. The production and use of the items restricted by this bylaw have significant impacts on the environment, including but not limited to: contribution to pollution of the land environment; creating a burden to solid waste and recycling facilities; entering storm drains that empty into waterways leading to the ocean, causing potential harm to marine animals; and requiring billions of gallons of crude oil nationally for their manufacture.

Section II: Definition

Compostable: A characteristic of a product that can disintegrate into non-toxic, natural elements at a rate consistent with organic materials. A compostable product will require microorganisms, humidity, and heat to yield a finished compost product (carbon dioxide, water, inorganic compounds, and biomass).

Food Establishment: For purposes of this bylaw, this is an operation defined per 105 CMR 590.001 (State Sanitary Code; Minimum Standards for Food Establishments). A food establishment operation includes but is not limited to business and governmental establishments that store, prepare, package, serve, vend or otherwise provide food or beverage for human consumption. This includes but is not limited to restaurants, satellite or catered feeding locations, food trucks, groceries, farmers markets, bed-and-breakfast or cottage food kitchens, schools, religious institutions, temporary food events, and any establishment requiring a permit to operate in accordance with state food codes.

Materials Recovery Facility (MRF): A specialized plant that receives, separates and prepares recyclable materials for sale to end-user manufacturers. A MRF may also be defined as a materials reclamation facility, materials recycling facility or a multi re-use facility).

Municipal Solid Waste: Waste that is not recyclable and that is ultimately transported to either a landfill or a facility for incineration.

Online Food Ordering Platform: A website or mobile application through which a consumer can place an order for pickup or delivery of prepared food. Such platforms include, but may not be limited to, those operated directly

DRAFT (B)- 11/15/2023 Presented to Select Board and Board of Health

by food establishments, by companies that provide delivery of prepared meals to consumers, and by online food ordering systems that connect consumers to prepared food vendors directly.

High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE): A common, highly stable, thermoformable plastic polymer used to make containers that require impact strength, chemical resistance, and longevity. It may be labeled with the recycling triangle symbol identification No. 2.

Low-Density Polyethylene (LDPE): A very common, highly stable and thermoplastic polymer used to make thin films used for plastic bags and other light duty requirements. It may be labeled with the recycling triangle symbol identification No. 4.

Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (**PFAS**) are a class of 12,000 large complex groups of fluorinated synthetic chemicals added to products like food packaging to enhance their grease resistant, waterproof, non-stick, and stainproof qualities. Because they do not breakdown in nature these chemicals become bio-accumulative and ultimately harmful in humans, wildlife, and the environment. Packaging that contains PFAS can leach into food & beverage products thereby directly exposing them to humans during food consumption. It can also leach into the food supply if such packaging is composted.

Polyethylene Terephthalate (PET or PETE): A common thermoplastic polymer widely used to make packaging for foods and beverage products. It is commonly used to make single use bottles for water and other liquids. It may be labeled with the recycling triangle symbol identification No. 1.

Polypropylene (PP): A synthetic plastic polymer used to make food containers, disposable cutlery, plastic straws, and other products. It may be labeled with the recycling triangle symbol identification No. 5.

Polystyrene (PS or EPS): A common inexpensive plastic polymer known for its strength and flexibility. It is often used to make food containers, cups, utensils, and other products. This material can also be offered as Expanded Polystyrene (EPS) or Styrofoam that is generally compromised of 98% air. EPS is often used to insulate hot or cold liquids and food items. It may be labeled with the recycling triangle symbol identification No. 6.

Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC): A common inexpensive plastic polymer known for its rigidity and strength. It can be used to make plastic straws and utensils, and other products. It may be labeled with the recycling triangle symbol identification No. 3.

Prepared Food: Any food or beverage prepared on the premises of a Food Establishment by means of cooking, chopping, slicing, mixing, freezing, or squeezing, and which requires no further preparation to be consumed. "Prepared food" does not include any raw, uncooked meat, poultry, or fish products unless provided for consumption without further food preparation. Prepared food may be eaten either on or off the premises.

Recyclable: Material that can be sorted, cleansed, and reconstituted by Swampscott's municipal recycling collection program(s) for the purpose of use in the manufacture of a new product. "Recycling" does not include thermally destroying or converting solid waste.

Recycled PET: A type of plastic that is constructed from or mixed with post-consumer recycled Polyethylene Terephthalate material. Also known as "rPET"

Reusable: Products that are designed to be used more than once in the same form by a food or retail establishment (e.g., dishes that may be placed in a dishwasher, washed, and used again).

Single-Use Container: Nondurable disposable containers holding food or beverages distributed to customers with the intent of a single use, whether used for on-premises or off-premises dining services, takeout, or delivery. This includes containers, bowls, plates, trays, cartons, cups, lids, cans, sleeves, and other items designed for one-time or nondurable uses in which any food establishment directly places or packages prepared foods.

DRAFT (B)- 11/15/2023 Presented to Select Board and Board of Health

Single-Use Food Serviceware: Items provided by the Food Establishment in relation to consuming a meal or beverage with the intent of a single use. This includes but not limited utensils, forks, knives, spoons, sporks, or chopsticks. Excluded are wooden toothpicks and paper napkins. This does not include items that are necessary for the containment of foods, such as plates, bowls, beverage cups, and bags.

Single-Use Condiment Packages: Disposable single use packets made from plastic or foil containing liquid for consumption and including, but not limited to salad dressings, ketchup, mustard, mayonnaise, duck sauce, and soy sauce.

Section III: General Prohibition and Regulation

- 1. Food establishments as defined in Section II operating in the Town of Swampscott that provide or offer prepared food to customers in Single Use Containers shall be required to comply with this bylaw. Prepackaged items not prepared at the location of sale are not regulated by this bylaw.
- 2. Food Establishments that offer single use containers for takeout, leftovers, delivery, or other means for which the food or beverage will be consumed off premises, shall provide a container constructed of materials as regulated in Section V.
- 3. Food establishments where prepared food may be consumed on premises and served in Single Use containers that are recyclable and regulated in Section V shall
 - a. Offer a recycling collection receptacle in addition to trash receptacles; and
 - b. Contract with a recycling service vendor to remove recyclable materials. Recyclable materials shall be separated from other "municipal solid waste" destined for landfill or incineration.
- 4. Food establishments that offer **Single Use Food Serviceware** and **Single-Use Condiment Packages** as defined in Section II, may offer but shall only provide such items upon agreement or request by customers, or at a self-serve station.
- 5. Food establishments operating in the Town of Swampscott and that participate in online food ordering platforms shall, when such option is available, provide the option to customers to proactively request disposable food service ware with a food order. If an option is available to the customer but the customer does not indicate a preference, restaurants shall not include disposable food service ware with the order.
- 6. The BOH or its designee shall provide to food establishments succinct materials explaining the requirements of this bylaw and recommendations for proper solid waste stream procedure.

DRAFT (B)- 11/15/2023 Presented to Select Board and Board of Health

Section IV: Exemptions

- 1. The Board of Health (BOH) may exempt a food establishment from the requirements of this section for a period of up to one year upon a finding by the BOH that such requirements would cause undue hardship to the food establishment.
 - a. Any food establishment seeking an exemption shall apply to the BOH using forms provided by the Health Department, and shall allow the BOH to access all information supporting its application.
 - b. The BOH may approve an exemption request, in whole or in part, with or without conditions.
 - c. The BOH may establish a fee for exemption requests
- 2. The BOH may approve additional six-month periods upon the showing of a continued undue hardship.
- 3. An "undue hardship" shall only be found in:
 - a. Circumstances or situations unique to a food establishment such that there are no reasonable alternatives to materials banned in this section that are necessary to the establishment's operations;
 - b. Circumstances or situations unique to a food establishment such that compliance with the requirements of this section would deprive a person of a legally protected right; or
 - c. Circumstances in which a food establishment requires additional time in order to draw down an existing inventory of plastic products or materials banned in this section.
- 4. Other exemptions:
 - a. Pharmaceutical containers
 - b. Single-use containers provided to residents during a declared public health emergency or natural disaster

Section V: Material Specifications

- 1. Single-use containers exclusively composed of the following materials are prohibited for use by food establishments:
 - a. Polystyrene or Expanded Polystyrene "Styrofoam"
 - b. PVC-Polyvinyl Chloride
 - c. LDPE Low Density Polyethylene
 - d. Any plastic material in the color black.
 - e. Any plastic labeled as #7, "Other", or generally not accepted for curbside recycling in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
 - f. Recycled PET/PETE also known as "rPET"
- 2. Single-use containers composed of PET/PETE materials are restricted but not prohibited for use by food establishments. To prevent chemicals leaching into food, this material shall not be used to serve or store hot food or beverages.
- 3. Thin film transparent plastic "wrap" shall not be restricted when used to seal food, beverages, or the containers that carry them.
- 4. Containers intentionally adding the PFAS family of fluorinated "forever chemicals" for the purpose of enhancing its product performance are prohibited.

DRAFT (B)- 11/15/2023 Presented to Select Board and Board of Health

- 5. Any container that is labeled as "Compostable" must have one of the following certifications clearly marked on the container to assure that the material has been tested for compostability and specific contaminant limitations.
 - a. BPI (Biodegradable Products Institute)
 - b. TUV / OK Compost Industrial
 - c. CMA (Compost Manufacturing Alliance)
- 6. As materials technology, recycling processes, recycling vendors, states of emergency, and state and federal regulation can change from time to time, the Board of Health is authorized to:
 - a. Modify, add, or remove specific regulated materials to this section
 - b. Add or remove certification organizations and standards.
 - c. This authority shall be temporary and last no longer than 9 months.
 - d. Any conflicts with regard to state law or regulatory agencies shall defer to the authority of the more restrictive regulation.

Section VI: Consumer Advisory:

If a food establishment offers single use plastic containers for takeout or delivery, the establishment shall display to notify their customers with the following written statement:

"Per guidance of the Swampscott Board of Health, to avoid the possible transfer of chemicals from plastic containers at cooking temperatures, it is not recommended to reheat food while in direct contact with plastic containers."

This verbiage can be placed on the menu, the payment receipt, attached to the single use plastic takeout container, or any other communication method approved by the Director of Public Health or the Board of Health.

Section VII: Enforcement

- 1. This Bylaw may be enforced by any agents or contractor of the Board of Health. This Bylaw may be enforced through any lawful means in law or in equity, including, but not limited to, non-criminal disposition pursuant to G.L. c.40, §21D and Article XII of the Town's General Bylaws.
- 2. If non-criminal disposition is elected, then any Business Establishment which violates any provision of this regulation shall be subject to the following penalties:

First Offense: Written warning

2nd Offense: \$50 fine 3rd Offense: \$100 fine

4th and Subsequent Offenses: \$300 fine

Section VIII: Severability

If any provision or section of this section shall be held to be invalid, then such provision or section shall be considered separately and apart from the remaining provisions or sections of this section, which shall remain in full force and effect.

Section VI: Consumer Advisory:

If a food establishment offers single use plastic containers for takeout or delivery, the establishment shall display to notify their customers with the following written statement:

"Per guidance of the Swampscott Board of Health, to avoid the possible transfer of chemicals from plastic containers at cooking temperatures, it is not recommended to re-heat food while in direct contact with plastic containers."

This verbiage can be placed on the menu, the payment receipt, attached to the single use plastic takeout container, or

any other communication method approved by the Director of Public Health or the Board of Health.



North Shore Public Health Nurses REGIONAL COVID VACCINATION CLINICS



Open to eligible* individuals age 12+

*to be eligible you must have had your last COVID vaccine at least 2 months ago

Available Vaccine: Moderna COVID-19 Vaccine (2023-2024 Formula)

NOVEMBER 7th 9:00-11:00 AM

Marblehead Senior Center 10 Humphrey St., Marblehead, MA 01945

NOVEMBER 16th 3:00-5:30 PM

Danvers Council on Aging 25 Stone St., Danvers, MA 01923

NOVEMBER 14th 2:30-5:00 PM

Beverly Senior Center 90 Colon St., Beverly, MA 01915

NOVEMBER 29th 1:00-3:00 PM

Salem Community Life Center 401 Bridge St., Salem, MA 01970

DECEMBER 6th 1:30-4:00 PM

Peabody Council on Aging 79 Central St, Peabody, MA 01960

You are welcome to attend the clinic that is most convenient for you!

Pre-register for your appointment by using this link or QR code:

https://home.color.com/vaccine/register/peabody

If you have health insurance, please make sure to bring your insurance card with you.



These regional COVID Vaccination Clinics are sponsored by the Beverly, Danvers, Marblehead, Peabody, Salem, and Swampscott Health Departments

Swampscott Health Department



Opioid Settlement Funds Survey

We want to hear from you!

Please complete the survey online at: https://forms.gle/rdihQjk1CQ4jZqTc7

Or you can get a paper copy to fill out and then return at: Town Hall, the Library, and the Senior Center

Thank you!